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ADDENDUM NO. 1 
  
Date:  July 31, 2023 
Project:  Biosolids Land Application Services 
Job No.: 21500-08 
 
To:  All Planholders and Prospective Bidders 
 
The following changes and/or clarifications are hereby made to the Contract Documents and shall become 
a part of the Contract Documents dated July 2023. 

1. Bid Opening: Refer to NOTICE INVITING SEALED BIDS, Paragraph 2, Page 1-1: Bid 
opening has been rescheduled for Monday, August 7, 2023 at 11:00 AM. 
 

2. Volume 2 Bid Documents, Bid Schedule Page 2-7  Replace Bid Item No. 2 Paragraph 1  
Item No. 2. Biosolids Land Application: This unit price proposal item shall be the cost per 
dry ton of biosolids removed from the sludge storage ponds and reused and shall include 
all labor, materials, equipment and environmental permitting and monitoring necessary to 
legally extract, dewater, analyze, load, transport, monitor, and beneficially reuse 
wastewater biosolids through land application. The quantity of biosolids removed from the 
sludge storage lagoons site is calculated for each day that biosolids are removed based on 
the total wet tons removed multiplied by the percent of dry solids in the representative daily 
sample of biosolids. The total quantity that the District anticipates will need to be removed 
annually is approximately 280 dry tons. The actual quantity of biosolids that can be land 
applied may vary and remaining biosolids would be disposed of under a separate bid item. 
 

2. Volume 2 Bid Documents, Bid Schedule, Page 2-7  Replace Bid Item No. 2 Paragraph 3 
Payment for wastewater biosolids removal shall be on a dry weight basis per standard 
English ton (2,000 lbs.) of wastewater biosolids removed from the sludge storage lagoons 
site and properly reused or disposed. Dry weight shall mean 100 percent solids and zero 
percent moisture. The Contractor shall be responsible for determining the total wet tonnage 
of wastewater biosolids loaded onto transport trucks and hauled offsite to District 
reuse/disposal and shall provide copies of the certified weight tickets identifying the total 
wet tonnage of the hauled material, as well as the actual gross and tare weights of each load 
removed from the sludge storage lagoons site. Weight tickets shall be issued by a NTEP 
(National Type Evaluation Program) certified vehicle scale. Use of approximate tare 
weights for trailers or the portable on-site truck scale will not be allowed as a basis for 
payment. 
 

3. Volume 2 Bid Documents, Bid Schedule, Page 2-8  Replace Bid Item No. 4 Paragraph 1 
Item 4: Biosolids Subsurface Injection: The dredged Class B biosolids that cannot be 
applied on APN 155-011-33, will be subsurface injected on the District’s permitted 9-acre 
Dedicated Land Disposal or “DLD” area located adjacent to the sludge storage ponds. 
This unit price proposal item shall be the cost per dry ton of biosolids removed from the 
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sludge storage ponds and injected at the District’s Designated Land Disposal (DLD) Site 
and shall include all labor, materials, equipment and environmental permitting and 
monitoring necessary to legally extract, dewater, analyze, load, transport, monitor, and 
disposal of biosolids. The quantity of biosolids removed from the sludge storage lagoons 
site is calculated for each day that biosolids are removed based on the total wet tons 
removed multiplied by the percent of dry solids in the representative daily sample of 
biosolids. The total quantity that the District anticipates will need to be disposed of through 
injection of equal methods annually is estimated at 100 dry tons. 
 

4. Volume 2 Bid Documents, Bid Schedule, Page 2-8  Replace Bid Item No. 4 Paragraph 3 
Payment for wastewater biosolids removal shall be on a dry weight basis per standard 
English ton (2,000 lbs.) of wastewater biosolids removed from the sludge storage lagoons 
site and properly reused or disposed. Dry weight shall mean 100 percent solids and zero 
percent moisture. The Contractor shall be responsible for determining the total wet tonnage 
of wastewater biosolids loaded onto transport trucks and hauled offsite to District 
reuse/disposal and shall provide copies of the certified weight tickets identifying the total 
wet tonnage of the hauled material, as well as the actual gross and tare weights of each load 
removed from the sludge storage lagoons site. Weight tickets shall be issued by a NTEP 
(National Type Evaluation Program) certified vehicle scale. Use of approximate tare 
weights for trailers or the portable on-site truck scale will not be allowed as a basis for 
payment. 

Questions Received from Proposers/Bidders: 

The following questions were submitted on or before 7/27/2023, questions that are received after 
the bid questions deadline may not be answered in addendum. LGVSD responses to the questions 
are in bold. 

1. Page 28 - " Request the addition of the following language to Section 4.  and the same 
language be incorporated into Section 7.1 of the General Terms and Conditions of the 
contract . 

"Parties mutually agree that Liquidated Damages shall not apply to any delay 
resulting from or occurring, as a result of a Force Majeure event, or circumstance 
beyond the control of either party."  

Response: No contract revisions required. Per General Conditions Section 7.2 – No 
Damage for Delay Beyond District and Contractor Control, Contractor shall not be 
liable for delays beyond the control of both the District and Contractor, such as acts 
of God (force majeure). 

  
2. Page 33-34 - Request that Section 7.2 be amended to include the following language; 

" a change in Federal, State, or local law or ordinance; orders or judgments of any 
Federal, State or local court, administrative agency or governmental body; change 
in permit conditions or requirements;”  
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Response: No contract revisions required. Per General Conditions Section 7.2 – No 
Damage for Delay Beyond District and Contractor Control, Contractor shall not be 
liable for delays beyond the control of both the District and Contractor, such as acts 
of other government entities. 

 
3. Page 70- Request the additional language be added to Section11.2.1.6  

“District and Contractor agree in advance that if the District exercises its 
discretionary right to terminate for convenience, the District will pay Contractor 
for expenses incurred because of early termination. These expenses include, but 
are not limited to, recovery of capital costs, , demobilization, employee severance 
payments and costs to terminate subcontractors and equipment leases.” 

Response: The suggested modification would require District legal counsel review and 
approval after award of a contract to the selected contractor. 
  

4. Will the District agree in advance, to provide selected Contractor with Notice to Proceed 
on the work within 60 days from the Notification of Award? If not, will the District allow 
the Contractor to adjust its pricing based on the current market conditions at the time of 
NPT? 
Response: The District intends to issue a Notice to Proceed shortly after award of 
contract (Notice of Award) by the District Board and submittal of necessary award 
forms such as signed agreement and bonds by the selected contractor. 
 

5. Have the material specified in the Scope of Work been tested for PFAS / PFOA or other 
substances regulated by 40 CFR 503? If so, will the district share the results of these test 
with the selected contractors? 
Response: The materials are Class B Biosolids. The materials specified in the scope 
of work are routinely tested per the District’s permit requirements, and information 
can be found in the annual biosolids reporting. There is no known regulatory 
requirement for the District to test its class B Biosolids for PFAS/PFOA. The District 
will share the results of these tests with the selected contractor. 
 

6. Does the District have plans scheduled to test the materials specified in the Scope of 
Work for PFAS / PFOA or other substances regulated by 40 CFR 503 during the term of 
this contract? 
Response: There is no known regulatory requirement for the District to test its class 
B Biosolids for PFAS/PFOA. Per Section 01100 Summary of Work, item 1.04 D.2,  
other substances to be tested for are defined in the District’s NOA, attached to the 
Bid Documents. 
 

7. Summary of work 1.04 (A)f(2) mentions that contractor shall coordinate with the District 
on the timing of land application in relation to active farming activities. Would the 
nitrogen requirement (lbs of N/acre) of the field based on crop grown be provided by the 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 BIOSOLIDS LAND APPLICATION SERVICES Page 3 of 17



Addendum No. 1  
Biosolids Land Application Services  
July 31, 2023  
  

 

 

 

101 Lucas Valley Road Suite 300  • San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472-1734  •  Fax 415.499-7715  •  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

District? In other words, who would be responsible for the compliance of Monitoring & 
Reporting Program from SFBRWQCB? 
Response: Contractor is responsible for compliance with the Monitoring and 
Reporting Program associated with the NOA, per Section 01100 Summary of Work, 
item 1.04 D.2.b. 
 

8. Can you explain the summary of work (1.05), about the type of support required from 
contractor? 
Response: Assume level of effort responding to up to two (2) requests for information 
or up to eight (8) hours for collaborating with the Research Project Team. 
Collaboration may include, but is not limited to: 

• Coordination of Contractor’s planned work schedule and Research Project 
Team’s sampling needs and schedule. 

• Research Project Team may be onsite from time to time while Contractor is 
on site and “interview” the Contractor’s operator for the purpose of informing 
Research Project needs. 

• Request from Research Project Team for the Contractor to grab an extra 
sample (District to provide sampling containers) of the biosolids during 
extraction of the biosolids from the storage lagoons, as well as the biosolids 
cake product downstream of dewatering; Research Project Team may also 
request Contractor provide a sample of polymer being used in its dewatering 
process. 

 
9. Will district extend bid and questions due date? With the short time frame, more time will 

be needed.   
Response: See Item 1 above for the rescheduled bid opening date and time. 
 

10. Is there an alternate route to avoid the weight restricted bridge? Our equipment exceeds 
bridge weight restrictions. 
Response: The bridge is rated for H-20 loading. Contractor shall deliver equipment 
components separately in order to stay below the rated capacity. 
 

11. At the 7/24/23 site walk, an attendee requested a copy of the sludge storage lagoons as-
built drawing which show the pond elevations, including liner elevation and pond bottom 
elevations.  
Response: See Attachment 1 As-Built for sludge storage lagoon drawings.  
 

12. At the 7/24/23 site walk, an attendee asked about means/methods to apply biosolids to the 
Dedicated Land Disposal (DLD) Site. 
Response: The application of biosolids must meet conditions in the Notice of 
Availability (NOA) included in Volume 2 Bid Documents Appendix G Permits. 

 
This addendum consists of seventeen (17) pages including this page and attachments. Acknowledge 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 BIOSOLIDS LAND APPLICATION SERVICES Page 4 of 17



Addendum No. 1  
Biosolids Land Application Services  
July 31, 2023  
  

 

 

 

101 Lucas Valley Road Suite 300  • San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472-1734  •  Fax 415.499-7715  •  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

receipt of this addendum in the space provided on page 2-5, Proposal Cover Page and Bid Schedule, of 
the Bid Forms, and by signing in the space provided below.  Submit original copy of this addendum 
cover page along with the bid.  Failure to do so may disqualify the bidder. 

 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District:  Bidder: _____________________________________ 

 
 
 
   ____________________________________________ 
 

Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer  (Authorized Signature)   (Date)  
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